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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

EASTERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

ANDREA JARREAU-GRIFFIN,
individually and as a personal
representative of thestate of GUY J.
JARREAU, JR.; the estate of GUY J.
JARREAU, JR.,

Plaintiff,
V.
CITY OF VALLEJO; KENT TRIBBLE,
individually and in hiofficial capacity as 3

police officer; DOES 1-10,

Defendants.

This matter is before the court on defemamotion to dismiss plaintiffs’ third,
fourth, and fifth causes of action of the Filshended Complaint (“FAC”) and punitive damag
against defendant City of ValtejFor the reasons below, thisuct DISMISSES plaintiffs’ claims

in the third cause of action to the extergytlare premised on the Fourteenth Amendment;

No.: 2:12-cv-02979-KIM-KJIN

ORDER

Doc. 32

D
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DISMISSES plaintiffs’ claims in the fourth caugkaction to the extent they are premised on the

Fourth Amendment; DISMISSES plaintiffs’ fifttause of action; and DISMISSES plaintiffs’

claims for punitive damage against the city.
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l. ALLEGED FACTS AND PROEDURAL BACKGROUND

Plaintiffs allege the following factsOn December 11, 2010, Guy J. Jarreau, Ji.

(“decedent®) was assisting classmates and friéitrdsa music video by directing the film crew
which way to go. (FAC 1 7-10, ECF 15.) An offieerived at the scersnd ordered the entirg
film crew, including deceent, to disperse.ld. § 10.) The film crew followed these command
as “more officers arrived and commandeksd film crew to get on the ground.Td( { 11.)

Decedent “was a distance from the film cramd was then blocked off by an unmarked police

car” as he walked toward an alleyd.J Defendant Kent Tribble (“Tibble”), a police officer for

defendant City of Vallejo (“City”)wore plain clothes at the scene mtthan his official uniform|

(Id. 191 11-12.) Defendant Tribble shot decedethiout warning “as [decedent] held his hands i

the air, while holding a green cup.ld(f 11.) After the shooting, dedent “was incapacitated’
and “clearly in need of emergency medical caréd’ { 17.)

The City’s officers at the scene, including defendant Tribble, “waited
unreasonably long before calling for mealiassistance” for decedentd.(f 15.) The officers
then directed the ambulance t@dgadecedent to a hospital “unreaably far” from the place of
the shooting, though other medical facilities&eloser and “more reasonable choice$d: (

1 16.) Defendant City’s officers and defend@nbble did not personally provide emergency
medical care. Id. § 17) Decedent diesbsn after the shooting.d 1 7.)

On December 10, 2012, decedent’sineo, Andrea Jarreau-Griffin, and
decedent’s estate (collectively “plaintiffs”)darght claims against defendant City, defendant
Tribble in his individual andfficial capacity, and Does orterough ten. (Compl., ECF 1.)

On June 25, 2013, plaintiffs filed their§i Amended Complaint, alleging five
causes of action: (1) excessived® in violation of the FourtAmendment, invoking 42 U.S.C.
8 1983, against defendant Tribble) &privation of medial care in violatiorof the Fourteenth
Amendment, invoking 42 U.S.C. § 1983, agadefendant Tribble; (3) excessive force in
violation of the Fourthrad Fourteenth Amendmentayoking 42 U.S.C. § 1983, against
defendant Tribble; (4) deprivation of familialationship in violation of the Fourth and
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Fourteenth Amendments agaidefendant Tribble; and (BJonell municipal liability against
defendant City. Plaintiffs seek general, speeiad punitive damages, attorney’s fees, and ¢dsts.

On July 9, 2013, defendants filed a motioriemiss plaintiffs’ third, fourth, and
fifth causes of action, as well as the punitive dgesaclaim against defendant City, under Federal
Rule of Civil Procedure 12(b)(6). (Mot. DisssiPls.” FAC, ECF 16.) &intiffs filed opposition
on August 2, 2013. (Pls.” Opp’n Defs.” Mot. Dims, ECF 18.) Defedants filed a reply on
August 8, 2013. (Defs.” Reply PI©Opp’'n Mot. Dismiss, ECF 19.)
Il. STANDARD

Under Rule 12(b)(6) of the Federal RulegCofil Procedure, a party may move {o
dismiss a complaint for “failure to state a olaipon which relief can be granted.” A court may
dismiss “based on the lack of cognizable legaltheo the absence of sufficient facts alleged
under a cognizable legal theoryBalistreri v. Pacifica Police Dep/©901 F.2d 696, 699 (9th Cirn.
1990).

Although a complaint need contain only ‘fzost and plain statement of the clain

=}

showing that the pleader is entitled to reliefgbFR. Civ. P. 8(a)(2), in order to survive a motign
to dismiss this short and plastatement “must contain sufficiefatctual matter . . . to ‘state a
claim to relief that is plausible on its face Ashcroft v. Igbgl556 U.S. 662, 678 (2009) (quoting
Bell Atlantic Corp. v. TwombJ\650 U.S. 544, 570 (2007)). A colamt must include something
more than “an unadorned, the-defendant-unlawfully-harmed-me accusation” or “labels and

conclusions’ or ‘a formulaic recitation tdfe elements of a cause of action . . .l1d” (quoting

! Plaintiffs identify Doe defendants. The Nir€ircuit provides that “[plaintiffs] should be
given an opportunity through dseery to identify [| unknown defedants™ “in circumstances .
. ‘where the identity of the alleged defendhfis] not [] known prior to the filing of a
complaint.” Wakefield v. Thompspt77 F.3d 1160, 1163 (9th Cir. 1999) (quotibidespie v.
Civiletti, 629 F.2d 637, 642 (9th Cir. 1980)) (modificatiamshe original). Plaintiff is warned,
however, that such defendantdlwe dismissed where “it islear that discovery would not
uncover the identities, ordhthe complaint would b&ismissed on other grounds.Id. (quoting
Gillespig 629 F.2d at 642). Plaintiff is further warnia@t Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 4(m),
which states that the court must dismiss defetsd&@ho have not been served within 120 days
after the filing of the complaininless plaintiff shows good causeapplicable to doe defendants.
See Glass v. Fieldsdlo. 1:09-cv-00098-OWW-SMS PC, 2DU.S. Dist. LEXIS 97604 (E.D.
Cal. Aug. 31, 2011)ard Drive Prods. v. DoedNo. C 11-01567 LB, 2011 U.S. Dist. LEXIS
109837, at *2-4 (N.D. Cal. Sep. 27, 2011).
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Twombly 550 U.S. at 555). Determining whether a complaint will survive a motion to dism
for failure to state a claim is a “context-spectsk that requires theviewing court to draw on
its judicial experience and common sensiel’at 679. Ultimately, theaquiry focuses on the
interplay between the factual allegations of theplaint and the dispositive issues of law in th
action. See Hishon v. King & Spalding67 U.S. 69, 73 (1984).

In making this context-specific evaluatidhis court must cortgie the complaint
in the light most favorable tive plaintiff and accept as trtiee factual allegations of the
complaint. Erickson v. Pardus551 U.S. 89, 93-94 (2007). Thidewoes not apply to “a legal
conclusion couched as a factual allegatioRdpasan v. Allaind78 U.S. 265, 286 (198&)uoted
in Twombly 550 U.S. at 555, nor to “allegations teanhtradict matters properly subject to
judicial notice,” or to materiahttached to or incorporatég reference into the complaint.
Sprewell v. Golden State Warrigi266 F.3d 979, 988 (9th Cir. 2001).

1. ANALYSIS

Defendants argue plaintiffs’ third causeaation for excessive force fails to stat
cognizable claim under the Fourteenth Amendmgaintiffs’ fourth cause of action for
deprivation of familial relationship fails to statecognizable claim, and plaintiffs’ fifth cause o
action fails to state Blonell claim against defendant City. CE 16 at 2.) Defendants further
argue plaintiffs’ prayer for punitive damages aggihe city is improper and not recoverable a
matter of law. Id.) The court will address eachuse of action in turn.

A. Excessive Force Under the Fourteenth Amendment

Plaintiffs’ third cause of action allegesfeiedant Tribble shaind killed decedent
“without lawful justification” and subjected him to excessiveder “thereby depriving plaintiffs
and the decedent of certain constitutionally @ct#d rights” under the Fourth and Fourteenth
Amendments. (FAC { 33.) Plaintiffs assgaims under both the Fourth and Fourteenth
amendments for violation of “[t]he right to be free from unoeable searches and seizures” a
“[t]he right to be free from the use ekcessive force by police officers.id() Plaintiffs further
allege deprivation “of life or liberty withowtue process of lawinder the Fourteenth

Amendment and violation of theight to be free from interferee within the zone of privacy”
4
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under the Fourth Amendmentld() Defendants move to dismiss plaintiffs’ claims “to the exts
they are based on the Fourteenth AmendmeiiECF 16 at 5.) Defendants argue “[t]he
Fourteenth Amendment is inapplicable to plaintiffs’ claims because the Fourth Amendmen
protects against unreasonable searches and seizuesat §.) In opposition, plaintiffs argue
that defendants misconstrue the third cause afraas “based solely on unreasonable search
seizure.” (ECF 18 at 2.) Puiffs further argue that theyay “plead Fourteenth Amendment
claims when the police misconduct ‘shocks tbhestience,” and therebyolates a plaintiff's
substantive due process rightsld. @t 3.) To support theiisaertion, plaintiffs cite ttngram v.
City of San BernardindNo. EDCV 05-925-VAP(SGLx), 200/L 5030226, at *8-9 (C.D. Cal.
May 3, 2007).Ingramdiscusses Fourteenth Amendmeiirols for interference with familial
relationships, which are pled only in theufth cause of action, discussed below.

Defendants correctly argue that trmuReenth Amendment does not properly
support plaintiffs’ excessive force claimsSeECF 16 at 5-6.) [A]ll claims that law
enforcement officers have used excessive forageadly or not — in the course of an arrest,
investigatory stop, or other ‘seizure’ of a f@ezen should be analyzed under the Fourth
Amendment and its ‘reasonableness’ standatderdahan under a ‘substantive due process’
approach.”Graham v. Connqr490 U.S. 386, 395 (1989) (original emphassk alsdPatel v.
Penman 103 F.3d 868, 874 (9th Cir. 1996) (“[W]here a particular amendment provides an
explicit textual source of constitutional proiectagainst a particular sort of government
behavior, that Amendment, not the more geneedlinotion of substantive due process, must
the guide for analyzing a pldiff's claims.”) (citations, intenal quotations, and brackets
omitted),overruled in part on other grounds as recaggd by Nitco Holding Corp. v. Boujikian
491 F.3d 1086 (9th Cir. 2007). The court limits piidiisi claims for excessive force in the third
cause of action to those based on the Fodmkendment and DISMISSES plaintiffs’ claims
without leave to amend to the extent tlaeg premised on the Fourteenth Amendment.

B. Deprivation of Familial Relationship

Plaintiffs allege defendant Tribble “deprived plaintiffs of their right to a familig

relationship by seizing decedent by use ofaspnable, unjustified and deadly force and
5
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violence,” resulting in violations of the Fdalbrand Fourteenth Amements. (FAC { 35.)

Defendants broadly argue the fourth cause wbacis unsupported by sufficient facts and fail$

to state a cognizable claim.” (ECF 16 at Bgfendants, howeveonly discuss plaintiffs’
familial relationship claims under the Fourth Andment and urge the court to dismiss those
claims. (d.; see als&ECF 19 at 5 (“Plaintiffs’ Fourth Amendment claim for interference with
‘familial relationship’ is untenable and shdlde dismissed, and plaintiffs do not oppose
dismissal of this action.”).) Defendants contémat the Fourth Amendment is an inappropriat
basis for familial relations claims. (ECF 166at Plaintiffs offer no meaningful support for
basing a familial relationship ctaion the Fourth Amendment.

The relatives of victims of unlawful polidellings have personal standing to cla
deprivation of familial relationship under the stardive due process clause of the Fourteenth
Amendment See generally Moreland v. Las Vegas Metro. Police D&p® F.3d 365, 371 (9th
Cir. 1998). Thus, the Fourteenth Amendment,thetFourth Amendment, allows plaintiffs to
bring claims for deprivation of or interference with familial relationst8pe, e.gArres v. City
of Fresng CV F 10-1628 LJO SMS, 2011 WL 28494t *16 (E.D. Cal. Jan. 26, 2011)
(dismissing plaintiff’'s familial relationship claimith prejudice to the extent it was based on t
Fourth Amendment). The court limits plaintifidaims in the fourth cause of action to those
based on the Fourteenth Amendment and DISMESBRIntiffs’ claims without leave to amend
to the extent they are premised on the Fourth Amendment.

C. Municipal Liability underMonell

Plaintiffs allege municigdiability against defendartity, claiming defendants
failed to train police officers and further clamgi “high ranking City officials . . . approved,
ratified, condoned, encouraged, sought to capeland/or tacitly atmorized the continuing

pattern and practice of misconduactd/or civil rights violations.”(FAC 1 18-21, 37.) These

2 Plaintiffs appear to allege deprivation ofrfdial relationship on behalf of all plaintiffs.
Defendants construe plaintiffsssertions as “a claim for vidlan of decedent’s right to a
familial relationship as a result of the alleged use of unreasonable force against him.” (EC
6.) But plaintiffs claim allegedefendant Tribble’s actions “depridglaintiffs of their right to a
familial relationship by seizing decedent . ...” (FAC { 35.) The language alleges a claim
behalf of all plaintiffs.

6

m

F 16:

on




© 00 N o o b~ w N P

N N N N DN DN NN DN R P R R R R R R R R
® N o O~ W N P O © 0N O 0NN W N B o

actions, plaintiffs allege, deprived plaffg of their constiutional rights. Id. § 39.) Defendants
argue plaintiffs’ complaint contains only constuy, and thus insufficient, allegations that
defendant City “ratified [defendaiitribble’s] allegedly unreasonablse of force” and “failed to
train [defendant Tribble] in pwviding emergency medical caredathe use of deadly force.”
(ECF 16 at 7.)

1. Failure to Train

“[T]here is no respondeat sup@ liability under [8] 1983.” Jones v. Williams
297 F.3d 930, 934 (9th Cir. 2002). For a municipaltye liable undeg 1983, a plaintiff must

—

show “the action that is alleged be unconstitutional implemerts executes a policy statemer
ordinance, regulation, or decision officially adieg and promulgated by thladdy’s officers. . . .
[L]ocal governments . . . may be sued for ¢agonal deprivations visited pursuant to
governmental ‘custom’ even though such aaushas not received formal approval through the
body’s official decisionmaking channelsMonell v. Dep’t of Soc. Sery<l36 U.S. 658, 690-91
(1978).

Prior to the Supreme Court decisiongimomblyandlgbal, suprg a claim for
municipal liability could‘withstand a motion to dismiss ‘even.if . based on nothing more than
a bare allegation thatehndividual officers’ onduct conformed to offial policy, custom, or
practice.” Karim-Panahi v. L.A. Police Dept839 F.2d 621, 624 (9th Cir. 1988) (citiSpah v.
Cnty. of L.A. Intelligence & Coordination Unit97 F.2d 743, 747 (9th Cir. 1986)). In light of
Twomblyandigbal, the Ninth Circuit now haarticulated a two-part rul® govern evaluation of

allegations in a complaint or counterclaim:

First, to be entitled to the presumption of truth, allegations in a
complaint or counterclaim may nongly recite the elements of a
cause of action, but must camt sufficient allegations of
underlying facts to give fair nogcand to enable the opposing party
to defend itself effectively. Seconthe factual alleg#ons that are
taken as true must plausibly suggest an entitlement to relief, such
that it is not unfair to require th@posing party to be subjected to
the expense of discoveand continued litigation.

Starr v. Baca652 F.3d 1202, 1216 (9th Cir. 2012). Thus, ¢burt considers a motion to dismjss

a claim of municipal Ability under a heightenquleading standardSeeYoung v. City of Visalia
7
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__US._ ,133S.Ct 1725 (2013).

687 F. Supp. 2d 1141, 1149 (E.D. Cal. 2009)i4al has made clear thabnclusory, ‘threadbare
allegations that merely recite the elements of a cause of action will not defeat a motion to gdismis

. In light oflgbal, it would seem that the prior ihth Circuit pleading standard fétonell
claims (i.e. ‘bare allegatiof)ss no longer viable.”).

To state a claim undédonell, a party must identify the challenged policy or
custom, explain how it was deficient, explain hibwaused the plaintiff harm, and reflect how |t
“amounted to deliberate indifference, i.e.[,] eaipkd how the how the deficiency involved wasg
obvious and the constitutional injury was likely to occuydung v. City of Visalig687 F. Supp.
2d 1141, 1149 (E.D. Cal. 2009) (examinicge v. City of Los Angele250 F.3d 668 (9th Cir.
2001));seeKnanishu v. McGinnes478 F. App’'x 432, 433 (9th Ci2012) (affirming district
court’s dismissal of claims against the Countyatramento where plaintiff failed to “allege that
his injuries were proximatelyaused by defendants’ conduct unae official county policy,
custom, practice, or procedureDpugherty v. City of Covin&54 F.3d 892, 900-01 (9th Cir.

2011) (affirming dismissal whereaghtiff failed to allege “anyacts demonstrating that his

D

constitutional depravation was tresult of a custom or practice thie [defendant city] or that th

custom or practice was the ‘moving forehind his constitutional deprivation@ert. denied

In limited circumstances, a municipality’s failure to train its police officers or

other employees may amount to a “city policy or custom that is actionable under § Cag3ft

=

Canton 489 U.S. 378, 389 (1989) (internal quotationstmd). A municipality may be liable fg
failure to train its police fficers “only where the failuréo train amounts to deliberate
indifference to the rights of persons witihom the police come into contactVateyko v. Felix

924 F.2d 824, 826 (9th Cir. 1990) (quoti@gy of Canton489 U.S. at 388). A plaintiff allegin

QL

failure to train must ultimately show: “(1) leas deprived of a constitutional right, (2) the
municipality had a training polcthat amounts to deliberate ifférence to the constitutional
rights of the persons witlvhom its police officers are likelyp come into contact; and (3) his
constitutional injury would have been avaidead the municipality properly trained those

officers.” Young 687 F. Supp. 2d at 1148 (citiBgankenhorn v. City of Orangd85 F.3d 463,
8
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484 (9th Cir. 2007) andeg 250 F.3d at 681) (internal quotations and brackets omitted);
Dougherty v. City of Covin®54 F.3d 892, 901 (9th Cir. 201tgrt. denied133 S. Ct. 1725
(U.S. 2013) (affirming dismissal of claims foiltae to train where @lintiff “pointed to no
instances of deliberate indifference”). A municipais deliberately indifferent when “the neeg
for more or different training iso obvious, and the inadequacy ¢afrent procedure] so likely t
result in the violation of constitional rights, that the policymaks of the city can reasonably b
said to have been deliberatétgifferent to the need.City of Canton489 U.S. at 396eelLeg
250 F.3d at 682.

In Young v. City of Visalighe court found the followg allegations to merely

“track the elements fdvionell liability” without staing a cause of action:

Defendants City of Visalia . . . dnCity of Farmersville . . . are
named herein for having so knawly failed to reasonably select
and hire, and to reasonably well educate, instruct and train, and
direct, supervise, control and dislane the conduct of its officers
and supervisors, including thedividual defendants named herein,

in recurring situations such ase alleged herein, in which their
officers’, deputes’, and supervisorviolations of the civil and
statutory rights of individuals, auding plaintiffs herein, were
anticipated and could have beprevented by such selection and
hiring, education, training, direction, supervision, control, and
discipline, that the Cities of Via and Farmersville set in motion a
chain of events that made the violations alleged herein foreseeable
and substantially certain to occUlihe actions anthactions of the
Cities of Visalia and Farmersville were thus the moving force
causing the violationalleged herein.

687 F. Supp. 2d at 1146-47, 1149 (brackets omittedg cohrt recognized thataintiffs asserted
an allegation of deliberate indifference in claiming “[p]laintiffs’ constitutional injuries were
foreseeable and substantially certain to occla."at 1150 ¢iting City of Canton489 U.S. at
390) (internal quotation marks omitted). But thlegations were insufficient, the court noted,
because they did not identify the training andngnpractices, discuss “how those practices we
deficient,” and identify “the obviousss of the risk involved . . . .1d. (dismissing the action
with leave to amend).

In Canas v. City of Sunnyvaliae court similarly found inadequate claims for
municipal liability based on failure toatin. No. C 08-5771 JF (PSG), 2011 WL 1743910, at

6 (N.D. Cal. Jan. 19, 2011). There, plaintifieged liability on the grounds that defendant
9
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municipalities inadequately traed, supervised, and controlleohployees in serving arrest
warrants and using deadly for¢bat the maintenance of ap@gtment of public safety, as
opposed to a dedicated police department, constituted deliberate indifference leading to
unconstitutional injuries; and thatl4-month training period fafficers who shot decedent wa
inadequate and a factor leadioghe decedent’s wrongful deatld. “Despite the length of thes
allegations,” the court concludéke facts were “insufficientand “conclusory in nature.ld. at
*5-6. The plaintiffs failed to “explain in detdiowthe City’s alleged policies or customs are
deficient . . . [andhowthe alleged policies or customs sad harm to [p]laintiffs and the
[d]ecedent.”Id. at *6 (original emphasis).

As inYoung v. City of VisaliandCanas v. City of Sunnyvalelaintiffs’
allegations here of defendant City’s failuretri@in are conclusory argb not adequately plead

municipal liability. Plaintiffs ege: defendant City had a “duty cédire to hire, train, supervise

and discipline peace officers so as to avoid wsoeable risk of harm to detainees and care for

those shot by officers” (FAC { 1.8defendant City failed to traidefendant Tribble in providing
emergency medical cared( 1 19); decedent’s “death was a foreseeable harm resulting fror
defendants’ failure to exercise the duty of caned to [decedent], and due to defendant Tribk
lack of training by defendant Citygarding the use of deadly forced ({ 20); and decedent’s
injuries resulting from defendafitibble’s conduct were thedttual and proximate cause of
[decedent’s] death and plaintiffs’ damages!. ([ 19, 21). Plaintiffs’ allegations track the
elements of a claim fanunicipal liability. See, e.g.Young 687 F. Supp. 2d at 1149. But they
do not plead with specificity the inagigacies of City’s training practice§ee, e.gMong Kim
Tran v. City of Garden Groy&o. SACV 11-1236 DOC (ANx), 2012 WL 405088, at *4 (C.D.
Cal. Feb. 7, 2012) (“Like th#oungandCanasplaintiffs, [p]laintiff does not plead with any
specificity what the insufficient practices were, hiney were deficient, or how they specifical
caused Plaintiff harm.”). Plailffs’ allegations are insufficiertb state a claim for municipal
liability premised on fdure to train.

1
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2. Ratification

In addition to alleging unconstitutionaltemns pursuant to a policy, practice, or
custom, plaintiffs may clairMonell liability where an “official with final policy-making
authority ratifie[s] a subordinate’s unconstitutal decision or action and the basis for it.”
Gillette v. Delmore979 F.2d 1342, 1346-47 (9th Cir. 1992)n authorized policymaker’s
approval of a subordinate’s deasiis “chargeable to the municlipg because their decision is
final.” Clouthier v. Cnty. of Contra Cost&91 F.3d 1232, 1250 (9th Cir. 2010) (citi@dy of St.
Louis v. Praprotnik485 U.S. 112, 127 (1988)). “[Adolicymaker’s knowledge of an
unconstitutional act does not, by ifseonstitute ratification.”Christie v. lopa176 F.3d 1231,
1239 (9th Cir. 1999). Further, “a policymakemn®re refusal to overrule a subordinate’s
completed act does not constitute approvéal.’(citing Weisbuch v. Cnty. of Los Angel&49
F.3d 778, 781 (9th Cir. 1997)). Rathratification requires an dudrized policymaker to make
“conscious, affirmative choice.Clouthier, 591 F.3d at 1250 (citinGillette, 979 F.2d at 1347).

Plaintiffs allege that “high ranking Cityffecials, . . . including defendant Tribble
approved and ratified a “continuing pattemdgractice of misconduct and/or civil rights
violations.” (FAC | 37.) Plaitiffs claim defendants’ “delibate indifference, reckless and/or
conscious disregard” of this misconduct ultimately violated decedent’s constitutional rights
deprived plaintiffs of constitutional rightsld( 11 38-39.) Defendants argue that plaintiffs bag
their ratification claim on “factuly unsupported conclusions.” (ECQ6 at 8.) Defendants rely
on Christie v. lopaandGillette v. Delmordo discuss the requirements of a ratification claim.
(Id.) Plaintiffs argue they need not “provariything at the pleading stage, and therefore
defendants’ reliance on these casesappropriate. (ECF 18 at 6.)

Though plaintiffs need not prove their cadehis stage, “calusory, ‘threadbare’
allegations that merely recite the elements of a cause of action will not defeat a motion to
... Young 687 F. Supp. 2d at 1149 (discussiglal's effect on claims for municipal
liability). Here, plaintiffs only allege that city offigls “approved, ratified, condoned,
encouraged, sought to cover up, and/or tacitli@ized” a continuing patte or practice. (FAC

1 37.) Plaintiffs fail to identify an affirmate/choice by city officials to approve defendant
11
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Tribble’s actions.See, e.gCanas 2011 WL 1743910, at *7 (findinglaintiff's claim for
ratification insufficient where the “alm appear[ed] to be based $plen the fact that the City’s
investigation did not result in digdinary action against the officefs” Plaintiffs’ allegations are
insufficient to state a claim for municidability premised on ratification.

Plaintiffs fail to adequately plead a claim fdonell municipal liability premised
on failure to train or ratificabin; the court therefore DISMISSEfintiffs’ fifth cause of action,
but with leave to amend in the event plaintdfe able to amend while complying fully with
Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 11.

D. Punitive Damages Against Defendant City

Plaintiffs’ prayer for relief seeks punitive damages against all defendants.
Defendants move to dismiss the claim for pweitlamages against defendant City on the
grounds that punitive damages are not recoverable against public entities. (ECF 16 at 11
Defendants are correct: plaintiffisay not recover punitive damages against a municipality uf

§ 1983. SeeCity of Newport v. Fact Concerts, 1nd53 U.S. 247, 271 (1981Yitchell v.

Dupnik 75 F.3d 517, 527 (9th Cir. 1996). Plaintifis not contest defendants’ argument. (EC

18 at 1.) The court DISMISSES plaintiffs’ alas for punitive damages against the City witho
leave to amend.

V. CONCLUSION

Accordingly, it is hereby ordered:

1. The defendants’ motion to dismiss the dhtause of action to the extent it is
premised on the Fourteenth Amendment is GRANTED, and that cause o
action is DISMISSED without leave to amd to the extent is premised on
the Fourteenth Amendment;

2. The defendants’ motion to dismiss the thurause of action to the extent it i
premised on the Fourth AmendmenGRANTED, and that cause of action
DISMISSED without leave to amendtize extent it is based on the Fourth
Amendment;
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3. The defendants’ motion to dismiss the fifth cause of action is GRANTED, and
the cause of action is DISMISSED with leave to amend;

4. The defendants’ motion to dismiss plaintiffs’ claims for punitive damage
against the city is GRANTED, and the claims are DISMISSED without leave
to amend.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

Dated: December 6, 2013.
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